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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Michael Ruddy (sometimes misspelled "Reddy") built the main unit of the 
Ruddy-Collins House in 1870-71. In some way he may have included in the 
structure a combination inn and roadhouse which had been erected at or near 
this location in the late 1860's by W. A. Caldwell, pioneer northern Idaho 
cattleman of the Caldwell & Hall cattle ranch. The main unit, which is now 
the two-story front section of the house, consisted of two rooms on the 
ground floor and two more rooms above. Undistinguished in architectural 
style, the gable-roofed structure was built with square nails and rough, 
hand-sawn lumber from nearby trees. On the inside of a present downstairs 
closet where the old wall is exposed, one can see that each of the rough- 
hewn planks varies in width from one end to the other. It is not known 
when a more refined clapboard exterior (shown in photographs of the 1880 f s) 
was added. Some time after his family joined him in 1871, Ruddy built a 
ground floor addition of two rooms on the back of the house. Orville M. 
Collins purchased the property in 1884. ; , In 1888 he constructed two more 
rooms on the rear to accommodate his growing family. Although general 
repairs and improvements have been made over the years, there have been no 
major alterations since this second addition was completed.

A woDden_granary building with a rock foundation, erected on the property 
by Orville M. Collins, was one of the first such structures built for the 
bulk storage of grain in Whitman County. The granary was unique in that 
outside chutes for unloading grain into the building were constructed at 
roof level, with a ramp leading up to that height. Six-horse teams and 
wagons hauled the wheat up the ramp for dumping into the bins below. The 
ramp . was torn, rdown in 191,8 ;or 1*920 a,nd. the granary then became a barn for 
storing hay. It is still standing. The actual date of construction is 
unknown. •-- j * -
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Ruddy-Collins House is believed to be the oldest house still standing 
in Whitman County, and one of the oldest buildings in southeastern Wash­ 
ington, having been built in 1870-71. It is located just inside the 
Washington state line at the head of Hatwai Canyon, a natural cleavage 
that knifes for several miles down to the Clearwater River near its 
junction with the Snake River at the twin cities of Lewiston, Idaho, and 
Clarkston, Washington. The wooded canyon was used by the Indians as a 
gathering place for councils and by the whites as a route up the grade 
of the Clearwater-Snake depression. W. A. Caldwell of the Caldwell & Hall 
cattle ranch in adjoining northern Idaho is supposed to have built an inn 
and roadhouse at or near this location in the late 1860 f s. Although one 
or two other permanent settlers had preceded him in the area, Michael 
Ruddy arrived in the fall of 1870. The great influx of population, made 
up to a large extent of German Catholic immigrants, did not begin until 
the middle of the 1870's. Whitman County was organized in 1871, with the 
county seat at Colfax. rThe agriculturally ri6h,v rolling latid now'known 
as the "Palouse county" was then covered with bunch grass and sagebrush, 
and lanky cattle ranged over much of it.

Michael Ruddy brought his wife and seven children from eastern Canada to 
San Francisco in 1869, traveling across the United States oh the new trans­ 
continental railroad. After a year in San Francisco, the father and one 
of the sons came ahead to the new area to acquire land and build a house, 
and the rest of the family followed in 1871. For several years the Ruddy 
home also served as a station for the stagecoaches of the Northwestern 
Stage Company on their way from Lewiston to Coifax, Spokane, and other 
points north. Travelers could obtain lodging and meals there, and mail 
was also left at the home to be called for by the settlers. Before the 
Catholic church was constructed in nearby Uniontown in 1879, Jesuit priests 
from Lapwai or DeSmet in Idaho would occasionally say mass in the Ruddy 
house and one or two other farm homes in the area.

Orville M. Collins purchased the Ruddy property in 1884. A native of Iowa, 
Collins had crossed the northern plains to the Pacific Northwest as a 
young man of twenty-one, driving horse and mule teams in a company of 
fortune seekers. With the Ruddy property as his "home place," he became 
one of the largest landowners in southeastern Washington. His farm home 
and its two large red barns,which could hold 300 tons of feed and house 
125 head of horses and cattle, became the pride of the entire community. 
In the 1880 f s Collins operated a horse-powered threshing machine which



An Illustrated History of North Idaho, Embracing Nez Perce, Idaho, Latah,
Kootenai arid Shoshone Counties, State of Idaho (n.p.: Western Historical
Publishing Co., 1903), pp. 42, 140-41, 616.

Historic Preservation File, Whitman County Historical Society, contains 
copies of items from Collins family archives, including photographs, deeds, 
newspaper clippings , and pamphlets .

W. H. Lever, An Illustrated History of Whitman County, State of- Washington
(n.D.: W. H. Lever, Publisher, 1901), PP. 440-41 passim. (Cont.)
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8. Signifiance (Cont.)

harvested patches of grain for the settlers over a circuit of some sixty 
miles. He raised sheep for several years until homesteaders took up the 
available winter range land along the side hills of the Clearwater and Snake 
canyons. During the Klondike gold excitement of the late 1890's, a herd of 
steers was sent north from his farm each summer to provide meat for Alaskan 
miners. He operated a feed store in Lewiston, supplying most of the grain 
from his own farm lands, and he also manufactured brick and became president 
of a Cottonwood, Idaho, bank. But his principal activity through the years 
until his death in 1939 was the same one that had first brought prosperity 
to the Palouse country — the growing of wheat.

Today Whitman County is the most productive wheat-growing county in the 
United States. One of the early settlers who realized such benefits while 
living on his home place at the head of Hatwai Canyon was Orville M. Collins, 
His wife doubled as private secretary in business affairs, in addition to 
cooking for large crews of field hands, doing farmyard chores, and raising 
a family of nine children, not to mention coping with the typhoid fever 
epidemic of 1892 that laid low the whole family. Mr. and Mrs. Collins 
helped organize the first public school in the community and to erect the 
first schoolhouse. Three of their children graduated from Washington State 
University in nearby Pullman and three others finished at either normal or 
business schools. To a large extent the account of the two families who 
have lived in the Ruddy-Collins House epitomizes the social and economic 
development of the community.

The house is still occupied as a farm home by a Collins grandson and his 
wife, Mr. and Mrs. Robert Collins, and barns and outbuildings are still in 
use. As a reminder of the days when it was a way station for stagecoaches 
and travelers, the 100-year-old structure overlooks busy U.S. Highway 95 
where it comes up the "Lewiston Grade" from the Clearwater-Snake depression 
and forms a fork with U.S. Highway 195.
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